
THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE 

 

TOWN OF NORTHBRIDGE 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN'S MEETING 

NORTHBRIDGE TOWN HALL 

7 MAIN STREET - WHITINSVILLE, MA  01588 
January 23, 2017 AT 7:00 PM  

 

 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

 

I. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  A. December 5, 2016 B. January 9, 2017 [Executive Session]  

 

II. PUBLIC HEARING/7:05 PM: 

C. National Grid Company and Verizon New England, Inc. / Petition requesting the installation of 

new pole 2-1 to bring service to new pole for house number 12 Wards Lane [Plan #23216817, dated 

12/9/16] / Present: Crystal Tognazzi 
  

III. APPOINTMENTS/By the Board of Selectmen: 

 D. Elaine Mahoney, Council on Aging/Vote to appoint [Present: Kelly Bol, Senior Center Director] 

 

IV. CITIZENS' COMMENTS/INPUT 

 

V. DECISIONS 

E. Presidential Farms/Vote to obtain ownership of Parcels A & D Present: Brian Massey, Chairman, 

Planning Board & David Brossi, Developer  

  F. Spring Annual Town Meeting [May 2, 2017]/Vote to close the warrant Friday, March 3, 2017   

  @ Noon 

  G. Linda Usher/Request to hold the 29th Annual Whitin Five Mile Road Race, Thursday, November 23,  

  2017 

  H. Annual Town Election Warrant [May 16, 2017]/Vote to give notice to the Town Clerk to place  

  vacancies from elected boards on the Town Election Warrant  

     

 VI. DISCUSSIONS 

 I. Tree Clearing Update/Present: David Pickart, Agent, Conservation Commission    

     

VII. TOWN MANAGER'S REPORT 

 J. 1) Great Hall Restoration  

     2) WWI Memorial Restoration 

     3) Economic Development Committee Meeting 

     4) MMA Annual Trade Show 

 

VIII. SELECTMEN'S CONCERNS  

     

IX. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA  

 

X. CORRESPONDENCE  
 

XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION   

Town Clerk:  2 Hard copies □ 

Town Clerk:  E-mail hard copy □ 

Web: Post time-stamped copy □ 

 

 



BOARD OF SELECTMEN'S MEETING 

December 5, 2016 

 

JOINT MEETING WITH THE NORTHBRIDGE HOUSING AUTHORITY 

 

A meeting of the Board of Selectmen was called to order by Chairman James Marzec at 6:30 PM, 

Northbridge Town Hall, 7 Main Street, Whitinsville, MA. Present: Messrs. Ampagoomian, Athanas, 

Melia, Nolan, and Marzec.  Also Present: Theodore D. Kozak, Town Manager; Gary Nestor, Fire Chief; 

and Shelly Buma, John O’Brien, and John Shannahan, members of the Northbridge Housing Authority.  

 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by those present 
 

Chairman Marzec announced that the Board would be going into Executive Session and declared that 

having an open meeting may have a detrimental effect on the litigation position of the body. 

 

A motion/Mr. Ampagoomian, seconded/Mr. Nolan to go into Executive Session under M.G.L Chapter 

30A, S. 21 #3 - To discuss strategy with respect to contract negotiations – and to reconvene in Open 

Session.  Roll Call Vote: Mr. Athanas/Yes, Mr. Ampagoomian/Yes, Mr. Marzec/yes, Mr. Melia/Yes, and 

Mr. Nolan/Yes. 

 

Open Session Adjourned:  6:31 PM 

 

Executive Session Convened: 6:32 PM 

 

Executive Session Adjourned:  6:56 PM 

 

Open Session Reconvened: 7:00 PM 

 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by those present 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES/None  

 

PUBLIC HEARING/None 

 

APPOINTMENTS: Joint Appointment by the Board of Selectmen and Northbridge Housing 

Authority [1 vacancy]: Candidate 1 - Kathleen Charbonneau and Candidate 2 - Christina Simonian. 

Chairman Marzec explained that Ms. Charbonneau was present and the second candidate Ms. Simonian 

was unable to attend due to an illness but was present at the prior meeting. Mr. Shanahan, Chairman of the 

Housing Authority, opened the Housing Authority Meeting at 7:04 PM. Ms. Charbonneau explained to the 

Board that she has taken the initiative to get the ball rolling on some matters at the Housing Authority and 

would like to continue to do so as a member.  A motion/Mr. Melia, seconded/Mr. Athanas to nominate Ms. 

Charbonneau as a member of the Housing Authority. There being no further nominations, a motion/Mr. 

Ampagoomian, seconded/Mr. Nolan to close the nominations. Vote yes/Unanimous. A motion/Mr. Melia, 

seconded/Mr. Nolan to appoint Ms. Charbonneau to the Housing Authority. Vote yes/Messrs. 

Ampagoomian, Athanas, Marzec, Melia, Nolan, and Ms. Buma. Abstain/Mr. Shannahan. Selectman 

Ampagoomian asked if the Housing Authority had any plans to increase senior housing within the Town 

of Northbridge. Mr. Shannahan explained that there has been talk regarding expansion to family housing 

in the future, but it depends on the funding to obtain additional property for the expansion. Mr. Shannahan 

closed the Northbridge Housing Authority’s meeting at 7:09 PM.  

 

 

A. 



CITIZENS' COMMENTS/INPUT/None 

 

MLJJ, Inc. d/b/a The Gray Barn, 2 Elm Place, Whitinsville, MA 01588[John Mellor, Mgr.]/Request 

to change Sunday hours [Present: John Mellor, Mgr.]. Mr. Mellor explained that he supports the local 

1st Day 5K Road Race and with New Year’s Day being a Sunday this year, he is requesting a one-time 

permission to open on Sunday, January 1st at 10 AM. Chairman Marzec announced that the Board received 

confirmation that Police Chief Warchol does not have an issue with a one-time request to open early on 

Sunday, January 1st. A motion/Mr. Athanas, seconded/Mr. Nolan to grant permission to John Mellor, 

Manager of The Gray Barn, 2 Elm Place, to open at 10 AM on Sunday, January 1, 2017, only. Vote 

yes/Unanimous.  

 

Tri-Valley Front Runners, Inc. [Matt Kellogg]/Request permission to hold the “Frank Nealon Boston 

Tune-Up” Road Race on Saturday, April 1, 2017 @ 10 AM subject to the safety requirements of the 

Police Department. Mr. Kellogg explained that this race would be the 37th Annual event beginning at 

Nipmuc High School and coming into Northbridge for about a mile and a half. Mr. Kellogg stated he is 

requesting permission to use the public roadways for that timeframe. A motion/Mr. Melia, seconded/Mr. 

Ampagoomian, to grant permission to Tri-Valley Front Runners, Inc. to hold the “Frank Nealon Boston 

Tune-Up” Road Race on Saturday, April 1, 2017 @ 10 AM subject to the safety requirements of the Police 

Department. Vote yes/Unanimous.  

   

Sewer Department Budget. Jim Shuris and Mark Kuras were present to discuss the Sewer Department 

budget. Town Manager Kozak explained that while budgeting for FY 16, the Town was coming close to 

breaking even. He explained that the costs that are being incurred is not due to labor management but the 

expenses to operate the plant itself as well as sludge removal costs, which continue to rise. Town Manager 

Kozak explained there is also a new contract for next year that may go up $40K-$50K. The engineering 

firm has found chemicals to maintain the EPA levels, which is expensive and the cost continues to rise but 

is still cheaper than the option of adding an addition to the plant. Mr. Kozak explained that Mr. Shuris, in 

working with Mr. Kozak, Mr. Kuras, and Mr. Vaidya have put together an increase schedule. Mr. Shuris 

explained that the brainstorming process goal was to generate about $150,000 in revenue based on usage 

fees. Customers were broken down and categorized by 0-800 cubic feet (Group 1), 801-2,000 cubic feet 

(Group 2), and 2,001 or more cubic feet (Group 3). Mr. Shuris stated that the billing is based on a quarterly 

rate.  The current quarterly rates are as follows: Group 1 pays $60.50; Group 2 pays $89.18; Group 3 pays 

$89.18 + $6.25 per 100 cubic foot over 2,000 cubic feet. The best scenario was to increase each group’s 

rate by about 7%. With this proposed scenario, Group 1 would increase by $4.50 per quarter and with 815 

users would generate additional revenue of $14,670. Group 2 would increase by $5.82 and with 1,535 users 

would generate additional revenue of $35,735. Group 3’s base rate would also increase by $5.82 + 6.88 

($6.25 x a 10% increase) per 100 cubic foot over 2,000 cubic feet and at 1,053 users would generate an 

additional revenue of $98,188. The total cumulative expected adjusted annual usage revenue increase is 

upwards of $148,592. Mr. Shuris stressed that the last increase was done in 2010, and is currently necessary 

to increase the current rates due to the rise in maintenance costs and chemical prices. Mr. Shuris explained 

that this increase is necessary to balance the budget. Selectman Ampagoomian asked when the proposed 

rates will come in front of the Board to be voted on. Town Manager Kozak responded he would like it to 

go before the Board at the December 19, 2016 meeting.  

 

TOWN MANAGER'S REPORT 1) Local Historic District Study Committee (LHDSC) - The LHDSC 

hosted a Public Forum, Tuesday, November 15, 2016. Attendees reviewed a preliminary draft of the 

boundary and properties considered to be included in a Whitinsville Local Historic District.  The 

presentation was videotaped and may be uploaded for viewing online.  More information is available on 

the Town’s webpage.  Mr. Kozak suggested the Selectmen should invite the LHDSC to a meeting in Jan/Feb 

for an update. 2) Great Hall Plaster & Painting Restoration Project - Bid specifications and drawings 

for the Town Hall are nearing completion. Formal solicitation for services (abatement, plaster work & 



painting) is anticipated for mid-December with a project completion date of June 2017. 3) Open Space & 

Recreation Plan (OSRP) - The OSRP Committee is scheduled to meet Tuesday, December 06, 2016 (6 

PM –Town Hall) to review and take public input on the DRAFT Open Space & Recreation Plan.  Anyone 

interested is welcome to attend. Questions may be directed to the Town Planner at (508) 234-2447. 3) 

Economic Development Strategic Plan - The town was recently notified of a pending grant award of 

$25,000.00 from the Community Compact Best Practices program. Funds will be used to prepare an 

Economic Development Strategic Plan for the town. Questions may be directed to the Town Planner at 

(508) 234-2447. 4) Chamber of Commerce Meeting – Town Manager Kozak attended a meeting to 

discuss strategy for economic development in the Blackstone Valley. A number of communities in the 

Blackstone Valley attended the meeting. The discussion included the pros and cons of the Valley and the 

hope to make the Blackstone Valley more attractive in order to increase industrial development in the future. 

5) Meeting with Riverdale Mill’s Proprietor - DPW Director James Shuris and Building Inspector James 

Sheehan met with James Knott Jr., Proprietor of the Riverdale Mill to discuss the water truck traffic on 

Riverdale Street. Mr. Knott reiterated that he does not allow the trucks off his property after 8 PM or on 

weekends. Mr. Knott has made the hours of operation clear to the company that purchases the water. 

 

SELECTMEN'S CONCERNS: Selectman Ampagoomian/1) Asked what the latest progress was on Pole 

#12 on Benson Road. Town Manager Kozak stated he asked the Fire Chief to add it to the Safety 

Committee’s agenda and he will follow up with him. 2) Announced that December 7th will mark the day 

that Pearl Harbor was attacked 75 years ago. Selectman Ampagoomian reminded residents to thank a World 

War II Veteran, if the opportunity arose. Selectman Marzec/1) Received a letter from the State denying 

the Church Street project funding for the third time. Selectman Marzec asked if it was worth a fourth try or 

try to look elsewhere. Town Manager Kozak explained that the Town would be looking elsewhere. 2)  Has 

appeared on the local access cable program “About the Valley” the past couple of weeks. Selectman Marzec 

explained that the last discussion included having a mentorship program in the community. One of the 

topics was the summer program and explained he would like for Dr. Stickney to come in to a future meeting 

for it to be discussed.  

 
ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA/None 

  

CORRESPONDENCE/None 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION - 6:30 PM: Under M.G.L. Chapter 30A, S21 #3 - To discuss strategy with 

respect to contract negotiations.   

 

A motion/Mr. Melia, seconded/Mr. Ampagoomian to adjourn the public meeting. Vote yes/Unanimous. 

 

Meeting Adjourned: 7:40 PM 

  

        Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

 

 

        James Athanas, Clerk 

/mjw 

 

 

 



LIST OF DOCUMENTATION 

 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING - OPEN SESSION 

 

December 5, 2016 

 
JOINT MEETING WITH THE HOUSING AUTHORITY 

 

I. APPROVAL OF MINUTES/None  

 

II. PUBLIC HEARING/None 

  

III. APPOINTMENTS: Joint Appointment by the Board of Selectmen and Northbridge 

Housing Authority [1 vacancy]:   

 A. Candidate 1. Kathleen Charbonneau / Candidate 2. Christina Simonian 

 -Copy of Kathleen Charbonneau’s letter of interest  

 -Copy of Christina Simonian’s letter of interest  

 

IV. CITIZENS' COMMENTS/INPUT 

 

V. DECISIONS 

 B. MLJJ, Inc. d/b/a The Gray Barn, 2 Elm Place, Whitinsville, MA 01588[John Mellor, 

Mgr.]/Request to change Sunday hours [Present: John Mellor] 

 -Copy of letter of request to open on Sunday, January 1 @ 10 AM 

 -Copy of Monetary Transmittal Form 

 -Copy of Corporate Vote 

 -Copy of Police Chief’s Warchol’s response  

 -Copy of License Routing Slip  

 

 C. Tri-Valley Front Runners, Inc. [Matt Kellogg]/Request permission to hold the “Frank 

Nealon Boston  Tune-Up” Road Race on Saturday, April 1, 2017 @ 10 AM subject to the 

safety requirements of the Police Department 

 -Copy of email requesting permission to hold a 15k road race 

 -Copy of map of 15k road race 

 -Copy of Hold Harmless Agreement  

 -Copy of Certificate of insurance 

 -Copy of tax exempt nonprofit letter 

 -Copy of Police Chief Warchol’s response 

  -Copy of DPW Director Jim Shuris’s response  

   

 VI. DISCUSSIONS 

 D. Sewer Department Budget 

 -Copy of Sewer Usage Analysis table 

 

VII. TOWN MANAGER'S REPORT 

 E. 1) Local Historic District Study Committee (LHDSC) -No documentation 

      2) Great Hall Plaster & Painting Restoration Project -No documentation 

      3) Open Space & Recreation Plan (OSRP) -No documentation 

      4) Economic Development Strategic Plan -No documentation 

      5) Chamber of Commerce Meeting -No documentation 

      6) Meeting with Riverdale Mills Proprietor -No documentation 



 

VIII. SELECTMEN'S CONCERNS /No documentation 

     

IX. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA/None 

 

X. CORRESPONDENCE/None 
 

XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION - 6:30 PM: 

 Under M.G.L. Chapter 30A, S21 #3 - To discuss strategy with respect to contract negotiations.   

 































T O W N  O F  N O R T H B R I D G E  

PLANNING BOARD 
7 MAIN STREET 

WHITINSVILLE, MASSACHUSETTS 01588 

 
 

PHONE: (508) 234-2447                                                                 FAX: (508) 234-0814 
 

January 18, 2017 
 
Northbridge Board of Selectmen  
7 Main Street 
Whitinsville, MA 01588    

    
RE:  PRESIDENTIAL FARMS 

Open Space Parcel A & Open Space Parcel D  

    
Chairman Marzec: 
 
At the request of the Town Manager the Planning Board reviewed letter dated November 30, 2016 (attached 
hereto) from Bowditch & Dewey, LLP concerning the Presidential Farms subdivision.  The Owner/Developer 
(David Brossi) has asked the Board of Selectmen to determine whether or not it desires to have the open 
space parcels conveyed to the town or conveyed to another entity as defined in our Zoning Bylaws.  
 
The conveyance of land requires Town Meeting action, however the Developer prefers to petition the Board 
of Selectmen first before presenting such an article at Town Meeting.  It is the Developer’s positon if the 
Selectmen do not support the proposed conveyance then he would forego consideration at Town Meeting and 
explore secondary options for deeded ownership of the two (2) open space parcels (Parcel A & Parcel D) in 
accordance with the subdivision approval. 
 
SUBDIVISION APPROVAL  
 
The Presidential Farms subdivision approved in 2000, consists of 105 single-family house lots and 
approximately 47 acres of designated open space: Parcel A (24 acres), Parcel B-1 (20.8 acres) & Parcel D (2.6 
acres).  The open space parcels are a requirement of the Flexible Development Special Permit issued by the 
Planning Board whereby dimensional requirements were granted (reduced lot size and frontage) for the house 
lots.  Open Space Parcel A & Parcel D are to be preserved as permanent open space.  [-see illustration 
attached] 
 

 In accordance with the Condition of Approval 36 –Parcel A & D shall be conveyed to the Town of 
Northbridge as the first option, or if the Town does not wish to obtain ownership, such parcels will be 
conveyed to another appropriate entity as identified in Section 173-86 (D) of the Zoning Bylaws.  If such 
conveyance is not to the Town of Northbridge, such land shall be subject to a permanent open space 
restriction as reasonably approved by the Planning Board. 

 

 In accordance with Condition of Approval 37 –The Planning Board will have sixty (60) days to review 
any entity, that such open space will be deeded.  Any deeds, restrictions, or other documents relating to 
these parcels shall be reviewed by Town Counsel and the Planning Board.  

 

E. 



Page 2 of 3 

 

 Pursuant to Condition 39, the Developer is responsible for maintaining Parcel D (i.e. mowing and 
cleaning) until it is conveyed to the Town of Northbridge or another entity as identified in Section 173-
86 D of the Zoning Bylaws. 

 
ARTICLE XIV FLEXIBLE DEVELOPMENT SECTION 173-86 OPEN SPACE REQUIREMENTS 
 
D. The required open space shall, at the owner's election, be conveyed to:   
 

(1) The Town of Northbridge or its Conservation Commission;   
 

(2) A nonprofit organization, the principal purpose of which is the conservation of open space and 
any of the purposes for such open space set forth above;   

 
(3) A corporation or trust owned jointly or in common by the owners of lots within the flexible 

development. If such corporation or trust is utilized, ownership thereof shall pass with 
conveyance of the lots is perpetuity. Maintenance of the open space and facilities shall be 
permanently guaranteed by such corporation or trust which shall provide for mandatory 
assessments for maintenance expenses to each lot. Each such trust or corporation shall be 
deemed to have assented to allow the Town of Northbridge to perform maintenance of the 
open space and facilities, if the trust or corporation fails to provide adequate maintenance and 
shall grant the Town an easement for this purpose. In such event, the Town shall first provide 
14 days' written notice to the trust or corporation as to the inadequate maintenance and, if the 
trust or corporation fails to complete such maintenance, the Town may perform it. The owner 
of each lot shall be deemed to have assented to the Town filing a lien against each lot in the 
development for the full cost of such maintenance, which liens shall be released upon payment 
to the Town of same. Each individual deed and the deed or trust or articles of incorporation 
shall include provisions designed to effect these provisions. Documents creating such trust or 
corporation shall be submitted to the Planning Board for approval, and shall thereafter be 
recorded in the Registry of Deeds.     

 
SUBDIVISION PLAN –OPEN SPACE LAYOUT 
 
Parcel B-1 (combination of Parcel B & Parcel C) fronts Hill Street and includes a drainage easement area.  An 
Agricultural Open Space Restriction was recorded in 2010. 
 
Parcel A (24 acres) is located to the rear of Parcel D and adjacent to lots 30-40 (Roosevelt Drive).  Required 
improvements to Parcel A includes an 8-foot wide bike path and a 5-foot wide walking trail.  Access to Parcel A 
is via Roosevelt Drive within the subdivision and neighboring Adams Circle; see illustration of Open Space 
Parcel A & Open Space Parcel D attached.  
 
Parcel D (2.6 acres) is located directly off Roosevelt Drive (cul-de-sac) adjacent to Lot 30.  Required 
improvements to Parcel D (recreation lot) includes a drainage basin, a portion of the 8-foot wide bike path, 
and an open grassed area with off street parking and a water service stub for irrigation.   
 
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION 
 
At its meeting of January 10, 2017 the Planning Board upon motion duly made (H. Berkowitz) and seconded (P. 
Ferrara) voted (4-1 [M. Key opposed]) to recommend the Board of Selectmen not pursue 
acceptance/conveyance of the open space parcels and have the Developer explore options of another entity.  



Page 3 of 3 

 

In making its recommendation the Planning Board noted liability and long-term maintenance concerns of the 
open space parcels (bike path, walking trail & recreation lot).    
 
Arrangements have been made for Brian Massey, Planning Board Chairman and David Brossi, Developer to 
attend the Board of Selectmen meeting of Monday, January 23, 2017 to discuss the recommendation. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
NORTHBRIDGE PLANNING BOARD  
 
 

 
Cc: D. Brossi –Presidential Farms, Inc.  

/File  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  

PRESIDENTIAL FARMS 
Open Space Parcels (A & D) 

 
Parcel A 24 acres 

Located to the rear of Parcel D and adjacent to lots 30-40 

(Roosevelt Drive).  Required improvements to Parcel A includes an 

8-foot wide bike path and a 5-foot wide walking trail.  Access to 

Parcel A is via Roosevelt Drive within the subdivision and 

neighboring Adams Circle   

 

Parcel D 2.6 acres 

Located directly off Roosevelt Drive (cul-de-sac) adjacent to Lot 30.  

Required improvements to Parcel D (recreation lot) includes a 

drainage basin, a portion of the 8-foot wide bike path, and an open 

grassed area with off street parking and a water service stub for 

irrigation.  

Bike Path Access  

  

 Walking Trail Access 

Open Space Parcel A & Open Space Parcel D are to be preserved as 

permanent open space 

 

Open Space 
Parcel A 

Open Space 
Parcel D 













mwetherbee
Typewritten Text

mwetherbee
Typewritten Text

mwetherbee
Typewritten Text

mwetherbee
Typewritten Text

mwetherbee
Typewritten Text

mwetherbee
Typewritten Text

mwetherbee
Typewritten Text





J.
TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT – January 23, 2017 

 
1. Great Hall Restoration - Bids for the Great Hall project including plaster, paint, 
and asbestos abatement are due February 1, 2017. Any companies interested in bid 
packets may contact the Town Manager’s Office at 508-234-2095. 

 
2) WWI Memorial Restoration - Bids for the repair and restoration of the World 
War I Memorial are due February 15, 2017. Any companies interested in bid 
packets may contact the Town Manager’s Office at 508-234-2095. 
 
3) Economic Development Committee Meeting - A meeting was held with Town 
Planner Gary Bechtholdt, along with representatives from the business sector in 
Northbridge to discuss work that has been accomplished and to generate discussion 
for any zoning changes for future Town Meetings in hopes of enhancing business 
opportunities in town. 
 
4) MMA Annual Trade Show- Attended the MMA Annual Trade Show on 
Friday, January 20, 2017 and Saturday, January 21, 2017. The Town Manager 
attended the trade show and various workshops. More information to follow.  

 
 
 
 


	Text1: H.


